
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session 

May 24, 2022 



 

City Administrator Memo  



 

 

To Mayor and City Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date May 20, 2022 
Re City Council Agenda May 24, 2022 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and 
included in the packet: 

 City Council Minutes (05/10/22) 
 Claims 
 Liquor License, Blues & BBQ July 9, 2022 
 Change Order #2, Centennial Park Loop Road, All 

American Concrete Inc., $937.61 
 Pay Application #5, Centennial Park Loop Road, All 

American Concrete Inc., $21,434 
 Change Order #1, Dubuque Street, Phase 1 Project, 

All American Concrete Inc., $40,079.91 
 Pay Application #2, Dubuque Street, Phase 1 Project, All American Concrete Inc., 

$401,302.38 
 Pay Application #14, Ranshaw Way Phase 5 Project, Peterson Contractors Inc., 

$269,899.72 

ARPA Funds 
Included in the packet is a memo and supporting documents for the ARPA funds 
discussion. The memo outlines expenses to date, highlights ideas that have been 
previously discussed and suggests objectives for the Council’s discussion Tuesday 
evening. The intent for this agenda item is to take another step forward in allocated the 
City’s $2.9 million in ARPA funds.  

FY22 Budget Amendment  
Each year, cities are required to amend their budgets to provide additional spending 
authority in cases where expenses are greater than budgeted. Amendments are not 
required for revenues; however, staff has included revenue projections within the 
amendment. Included in the packet is the budget amendment summary, with notes 
explaining the additional revenues and expenses projected for FY22. The proposed 
amendment will not have significant impacts to operating fund balances. Staff 
recommends approval of the amendment. 

 

Meetings & Events 
 
Tuesday, May 24 at 6:00p.m. 
City Council 
 
Thursday, Jun 2 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks & Recreation Commission 
 
Monday, Jun 6 at 6:00p.m. 
Communications Commission 
 
Tuesday, Jun 7 at 6:30p.m. 
Planning Commission  
 
Tuesday, June 14 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  



Liberty Villas Rezoning Ordinance, Third & Final Reading  
Daniel & Rhonda Bernacki Revocable Trust is requesting a zoning map amendment from 
C-2-A Highway Commercial District and I-1 Light Industrial District to RS-6 Single-Unit 
Residence District (19.73 acres) and RM-12 PAD Multi-Unit Residence District Planned 
Area Development (5.91 acres) – east side of North Dubuque Street approximately 185’ 
south of Scales Bend Road – to facilitate development as a residential subdivision. The 
PAD is being sought to allow individual curb cuts along a public street for townhomes 
within the multi-family portion of the development, which is not currently permitted in the 
Off-Street Parking Ordinance. It is staff’s opinion that residential development would be 
more compatible with the area due to the residential and school development that has 
occurred after Centro, Inc. since 1990. Two good neighbor meetings were held on 
February 14 and March 22. Several concerns were noted and are contained in the 
Planning Commission staff report. There is one verbal objection to the request. Staff is 
cognizant that “fitting the last piece of the puzzle” is important and the feedback 
received will need to be considered when the subdivision is designed. Staff is committed 
to maintaining an open dialog with surrounding property owners should the rezoning be 
approved. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the request 
at its April 5 meeting. Staff recommends approval as well. 

Watts Group Development, Inc. Rezoning, First Reading 
Watts Group Development, Inc. is requesting a zoning map amendment from RS-6 
Single-Unit Residence District to RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District – south side of 
Denison Avenue approximately 450 feet east of Brook Ridge Avenue – to facilitate 
development of smaller lot home sites. As construction costs and interest rates increase, 
staff expects denser development requests such as this one. Staff is generally in favor of 
increasing density in areas where utilities are available if the development would be 
compatible with the surrounding area. If approved, this would allow The Preserve to add 
to the range of housing types offered in the development. A good neighbor meeting was 
held on April 14, 2022. One person outside of City staff and the applicant attended and 
was just curious about the nature of the request. The Planning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the request at its May 3 meeting. Staff recommends approval 
as well. 

 

 



 

Agenda  



 

City of North Liberty – 2022   Updated May 20, 2022 9:00 a.m. 
Page: 1 

 City Council 
May 24, 2022 

6:00 p.m.  
Regular Session  

Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

1. Call to order   
 

2. Roll call 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, May 10, 2022 
B. Claims 
C. Liquor License Application, Blues and BBQ July 9, 2022,  
D. Centennial Park Loop Road Project, All American Concrete, Inc., Pay 

Application Number 5, $21,434. 
E. Centennial Park Loop Road Project, All American Concrete, Inc., Change 

Order Number 2, $937.61 
F. Dubuque Street Phase 1 Project, All American Concrete, Inc., Change Order 

Number 1, $40,079.91 
G. Dubuque Street Phase 1 Project, All American Concrete, Inc., Pay Application 

Number 2, $401,302.38 
H. Ranshaw Way Phase 5 Improvements, Peterson Contractors, Inc., Pay 

Application Number 14, $269,899.72 
 

5. Public Comment 
 

6. City Engineer Report  
 

7. City Administrator Report  
 

8. Mayor Report 
A. Proclamation of National Gun Violence Awareness Day 

 
9. Council Reports 

 
10. ARPA Discussion 

A. Discussion and possible action on expending ARPA funds 
 



City of North Liberty – 2022  Updated May 20, 2022 9:00 a.m. 
Page: 2 

 
11. FY 2022 Budget Amendment 

A. Public Hearing regarding proposed budget amendment for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2022 

B. Resolution Number 2022-44, A Resolution amending the current budget for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 
 

12. Liberty Villas Rezoning 
A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2022-10, An 

Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
by amending the use on regulations on property located in North Liberty, 
Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for the RS-6 Single-Unit 
Residence District and RM-12 PAD Multi-Unit Residence District Planned 
Area Development  

 
13. The Preserve Rezoning  

A. Public Hearing regarding proposed rezoning of property in The Preserve to 
RS-9 Zoning  

B. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-11, An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use 
regulations on property located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the 
Municipal Code for the RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District 

 
14. Old Business 
 
15. New Business 

 
16. Adjournment  



 

Consent Agenda  



 

City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 1 

City Council 
May 10, 2022 

Regular Session 
 
Call to order   
Mayor Chris Hoffman called the May 10, 2022, Regular Session of the North Liberty City Council 
to order at 6:30 p.m. Councilors present: Ashley Bermel, RaQuishia Harrington, Erek Sittig, Brent 
Smith, Brian Wayson; absent –none. 
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Ryan Rusnak, Kevin Trom, Grant Lientz, Jon Marner, 
and other interested parties.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Harrington moved; Wayson seconded to approve the agenda with removal of the ICAD 
presentation. The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.    
 
Consent Agenda 
Smith moved, Harrington seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes from the Regular Session on April 26, 2022; Ranshaw Way Phase 5 Project, Change Order 
Number 9, PCI, $12,907.95; and Ranshaw Way Phase 5 Project, Pay Application Number 13, PCI, 
$359,640.24. The vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda approved.   
 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered. 
 
City Engineer Report  
City Engineer Trom reported that the contractor for the Ranshaw Way Phase 5 Project continues 
to work.  The Centennial Park Loop Road project is substantially complete with a punch list issued.  
The contractor for Dubuque Street Phase 1 has paved the first two phases.  The next phase with 
the street curve has been started.  The contractor is ahead of schedule. The preconstruction 
meeting for the Jones Boulevard Extension Project is scheduled for May 20. Council discussed 
the report with Trom.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported that the next Council meeting will start at 6:00 p.m. with an 
ARPA work session.  The city is accepting social service applications until June 1.   The 
presentations will be held in June.  He offered additional information on the pool leaks. The City’s 
splash pad is still being de-winterized and will not be opened before Memorial Day weekend.  
 
Mayor Report 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 2 

Mayor Hoffman proclaimed May 7 as NAMI Mental Health Awareness Day.   Mayor Hoffman 
reported that he and Harrington will be attending the ChildServe lunch and learn.  He offered that 
next Wednesday from 2-4 p.m., Guidelink Center will be offering tours.   
 
Council Reports 
Councilor Bermel will be speaking at the May 19 return of the business league at Tin Roost from 4 
– 6 p.m.  Councilor Wayson attended Fire Department with pinning of 8 new fire firefighters and 
the bugle ceremony for Captain Humston.  Councilor Smith thanked Chief of police and Mayor for 
river response in Cedar Rapids.  Councilor Sittig attended A Decent Home shown at FilmScene.  
He encouraged all to view it.   
 
Matnic Site Plan 
Rusnak reported that the staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the site plan 
with no conditions. Council discussed the application.  
 
Jon Marner, MMS Consultants, was present on behalf of the applicant and offered additional 
information on the house on the property.  
 
Wayson moved, Smith seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-48, A Resolution 
approving the Development Site Plan for Lot 1, Front Street Place, North Liberty, Iowa.  After 
discussion, the vote was: ayes – Wayson, Smith, Bermel, Harrington, Sittig; nays – none. Motion 
carried.   
 
Centennial Park Project  
Bermel moved, Smith seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-49, A Resolution approving 
the Services Agreement between the City of North Liberty and Shive-Hattery, Inc. for the 
Centennial Park Project.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Smith, Bermel, Sittig, Wayson, 
Harrington; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Liberty Villas Rezoning 
Harrington moved, Wayson seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 
2022-10, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by 
amending the use on regulations on property located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in 
North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for the RS-6 Single-Unit Residence 
District and RM-12 PAD Multi-Unit Residence District Planned Area Development.  The vote was: 
ayes - Bermel, Sittig, Wayson, Harrington, Smith; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Harrington moved, Bermel seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of 
Ordinance Number 2022-09, An Ordinance amending Section 167.01 regarding the definition of 
“Masonry, Required”, Section 168.07(27)(9) regarding design standards for attached garages and 
Sections 168.07(76) and 168.07(77) correcting scrivener’s errors.   The vote was: ayes – 
Harrington, Bermel, Smith, Wayson, Sittig; nays – none. Motion carried.  



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 3 

Old Business 
No old business was presented. 
 
New Business 
Councilor Wayson reported on the released Blues and BBQ lineup. Councilor Harrington offered 
that the event is seeking volunteers.   
 
Adjournment 
Wayson moved, Bermel seconded to adjourn at 6:53 p.m. The vote was all ayes. Meeting adjourned.  
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:  __________________________ 

Chris Hoffman, Mayor 
Attest: ________________________ 

Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 



Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

TAP THIS CONCESSIONS, L.L.C.

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

Iowa Craft Beer Tent

BUSINESS

(515) 875-4914

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

1565 Saint Andrews
DriveWickham

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY

North Liberty

COUNTY

Johnson

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

309 Court Avenue

CITY

Des Moines

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

50309

Contact Person

NAME

Steve Linn

PHONE

(515) 577-3094

EMAIL

contact@iowacraftbeertent.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class B Beer Permit

TERM

5 Day

STATUS

Submitted
to Local
Authority

EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Class B Beer Permit

PRIVILEGES

Outdoor Service



Page 2 of 2

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Limited Liability Company

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION % OF OWNERSHIP U.S. CITIZEN

Scott Carlson Des Moines Iowa 50312 Owner 100.00 Yes

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Cincinnati Specialty Underwriters

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

May 26, 2022

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

May 26, 2023

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



$21,434.48

05/12/2022





05/12/2022





$401,302.38

5/17/2022



269,899.72

05 / 18 / 22



 

Mayor’s Report 



 

 

National Gun Violence Awareness Day 

This proclamation declares the first Friday in June to be National Gun Violence Awareness Day in the City of North Liberty to honor and 
remember all victims and survivors of gun violence and to declare that we as a country must do more to reduce gun violence. 
 
WHEREAS, every day, more than 110 Americans are killed by gun violence, alongside more than 200 who are shot and wounded, and on 
average there are more than 16,000 gun homicides every year. Nationwide, 61% of gun deaths are suicides and 36% are homicides; and 
 
WHEREAS, Americans are 26 times more likely to die by gun homicide than people in other high-income countries; and 
 
WHEREAS, IOWA has an average 302 gun deaths every year, with a rate of 9.4 deaths per 100,000 people.  79% of gun deaths are 
suicides and 17% are homicides. IOWA has the 42nd highest rate of gun deaths in the US; and 
 
WHEREAS, gun homicides and assaults are concentrated in cities, with more than half of all firearm related gun deaths in the nation 
occurring in 127 cities; and 
 
WHEREAS, cities across the nation, including North Liberty, are working to end the senseless violence with evidence-based solutions; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, protecting public safety in the communities they serve is mayors’ highest responsibility; and 
 
WHEREAS, support for the Second Amendment rights of law-abiding citizens goes hand-in-hand with keeping guns away from people 
with dangerous histories; and 
 
WHEREAS, mayors and law enforcement officers know their communities best, are the most familiar with local criminal activity and how 
to address it, and are best positioned to understand how to keep their citizens safe; and 
 
WHEREAS, gun violence prevention is more important than ever as the COVID-19 pandemic continues to exacerbate gun violence 
after more than a year of increased gun sales, increased calls to suicide and domestic violence hotlines, and an increase in city gun 
violence; 
 
WHEREAS, in January 2013, Hadiya Pendleton was tragically shot and killed at age 15; and on June 3, 2022 to recognize the 25th birthday 
of Hadiya Pendleton (born: June 2, 1997), people across the United States will recognize National Gun Violence Awareness Day and 
wear orange in tribute to - (1) Hadiya Pendleton and other victims of gun violence; and (2) the loved ones of those victims; and  
 
WHEREAS, the idea was inspired by a group of Hadiya’s friends, who asked their classmates to commemorate her life by wearing 
orange; they chose this color because hunters wear orange to announce themselves to other hunters when out in the woods and orange 
is a color that symbolizes the value of human life; and  
 
WHEREAS, anyone can join this campaign by pledging to wear orange on June 3rd, the first Friday in June in 2022, to help raise 
awareness about gun violence; and WHEREAS, by wearing orange on June 3, 2022 Americans will raise awareness about gun violence 
and honor the lives of gun violence victims and survivors; and WHEREAS, we renew our commitment to reduce gun violence and pledge 
to do all we can to keep firearms out of the wrong hands, and encourage responsible gun ownership to help keep our children safe. 
 
WHEREAS, we renew our commitment to reduce gun violence and pledge to do all we can to keep firearms out of the wrong hands, 
and encourage responsible gun ownership to help keep our children safe. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Chris Hoffman, Mayor, do hereby proclaim 

June 3, 2022 
As  

National Gun Violence Awareness Day 
 

      
Mayor Chris Hoffman  



 

ARPA   



 

 

To North Liberty Mayor & Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date May 19, 2022 
Re American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds, Discussion #3 

To date, the City Council has had two discussions around the Council dais regarding use 
of ARPA funds, with the last conversation in November of 2021. Since that time, final rules 
have been adopted by the US Department of Treasury. These rules further expand the 
spending authority of local governments and do not significantly impact previous 
decisions and discussions by the North Liberty Council. The most significant impact for 
North Liberty is the revised language pertaining to revenue loss, which in the preliminary 
rules was a prescribed formula and totaled $666k for the City. The final rules allow cities 
who receive less than $10 million to declare all its ARPA funds as revenue loss. In the initial 
required reporting to the Treasury, staff has claimed all $2.9 million as revenue loss. This 
declaration will allow the City Council the most flexibility in spending and will also be less 
difficult from a reporting perspective.   
 
Attached to this memo are two earlier memos and related materials regarding ARPA 
funds. While some of the information is no longer relevant, it is attached as a resource and 
to offer a perspective of previous discussions in which some may not have been involved. 
 
The chart below provides a snapshot of where the City’s ARPA account currently stands.  
 

 
 
 

ARPA Funds Available 2,906,110$ 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Funds 
Spent

Funds 
Allocated

Potential 
Projects & 
Programs Totals

NL Community Pantry 100,000$   100,000$          
FY23 Social Services 150,000$   150,000$           
Center for Worker Justice (wage Theft) 35,000$          35,000$            
Stormwater GIS 190,000$   190,000$          
Affordable Housing Program 400,000$      400,000$         
Workforce Housing Program 100,000$       100,000$          
Social Service Support 400,000$      400,000$         
Water/Sewer/Storm Water Projects 800,000$      800,000$         
Centennial Park Splash Pad 731,110$            731,110$              
Other -$                   

-$                   
100,000$   340,000$  2,466,110$       2,906,110$        



The City has spent or allocated a total of $440k in ARPA funds, as represented above in 
columns 1 and 2. In other words, $440k of the $2.9 million is committed, leaving $2.466 
million available for allocation.  Column 3 identifies programs and projects that have been 
previously discussed by the City Council. The numbers in these columns are simply place 
holders. The difference from previous discussions (see attached memos) is because 
circumstances have changed. For example, one concept discussed was allocating up to 
$1.6 million on a utility project to keep rates from increasing. Both utility funds are in a 
strong cash position, and neither will be recommended for a rate increase in FY23. Thus, 
that number has been reduced to $800k. And that number, just like any in Column 3 
above, can be adjusted. 
 
In recent weeks, staff and the Mayor have met with several area experts and 
professionals regarding affordable housing and social services. In discussions with the 
Johnson County Housing Trust Fund, local lenders and a realtor, they offered 
professional guidance as to ideas and obstacles to affordable housing. And while the 
details of those conversations can be articulated during the work session, it is evident 
there are many opportunities to impact affordable housing in North Liberty. If the City 
Council desires to fund an affordable housing project with ARPA money, a scope should 
be defined. For example, should a program focus on rental units, owner occupied or 
both? Is the goal to create additional affordable units or rehabilitate existing units? Is first 
time homeownership a priority? Once some of these questions are answered, staff can 
work with the Johnson County Housing Trust Fund and local lenders to start developing a 
program.  
 
From a social services standpoint, in conversations with Kalia Rome, the North Liberty 
Community Food Pantry Director, they have an interest in working with the City to 
develop some sort of financial assistance program to help North Liberty residents with 
other needs such as assisting with utilities, gas and other necessities. Ms. Rome is 
currently working with her team on an outline for that program. 
 
And finally, the Communication’s Team is seeking funding to furnish the Ranshaw House 
for a teen space as well as a collaborative office space for social service agencies. The 
price tag for this project is estimated at $40k.  
 
There are several objectives for Tuesday’s work session: 
 

1. To determine if the potential projects and programs noted above are still a 
priority for this Council. 

2. To understand if there are new ideas the Council would like to explore.  
3. If affordable housing is a priority, to start defining a scope of the program. 
4. To determine if they are any projects at this moment that could be moved from 

“potential” (column 3) to “allocated” (column 2). 



 
Lastly, the Treasury rules remain consist in that the City has until December 31, 2024 to 
allocate funding and December 31, 2026 to have all ARPA funds spent.  While it is 
important to invest the funds as quickly as possible, there is still ample time to discuss, 
research and decide.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

To North Liberty Mayor & Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date November 4, 2021 
Re American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds, Discussion #2 

At the August 24 City Council meeting, the Council was presented with a memo 
(attached) highlighting the recently approved administrative rules for spending the $2.9 
million in ARPA funds allocated and partially distributed to North Liberty. In addition, the 
City Council discussed high level ideas and concepts on how this money could be 
allocated. A summary of takeaways from the discussion is as follows:  
 

 Consider working with local social service agencies to expand and/or fill service 
gaps; 

 Consider supporting affordable housing through partnerships with local agencies 
and developers;  

 Consider water, wastewater and/or storm water projects with the intent to keep 
rates steady; 

 Not interested in direct payments to residents; rather, work through social service 
agencies who can better provide direct support to those in need;  

 Consider spending money immediately; “do not want to hold onto funds.” 
 

Since the August meeting, the Mayor and staff have had conversations with local social 
service providers and have researched the other high-level ideas offered by the City 
Council. The information and ideas below are provided in order to dig deeper into the 
conversation and decision making of how to invest the ARPA money. The discussion 
does not have to be limited to the ideas below; rather, they should be considered a 
starting point; a way to move the discussion forward. At this point, nothing – other than 
what is illegal according to the ARP Act – should be considered off the table.  
 
Since the pandemic began, the City has received or been awarded nearly $3.5 million in 
state and/or federal financial aid: 
 

Emergency Childcare Grant $9,243.26 
Summer Lunch Grant $11,348.47 
FEMA Reimbursement $15,403.79 
CARES Act Funds $463,471.78 
ARPA Funds $2,906,110.44 
Recreation Center Revenue Recovery Grant $63,839.28 

 $3,469,417.02 
 
The focus of this conversation is on the $2.9 million in ARPA funds. 



The chart below offers further refinement of the ideas previously discussed by the City 
Council. 
 

Affordable Housing 
Program 

$350,000 

In a conversation with the Johnson County Housing Trust Fund 
(JCHTF) Director, Ellen McCabe outlined several options for an 
affordable housing project in North Liberty. In summary, the City 
would assist in developing parameters for a project (i.e. income 
eligibility requirements, owner-occupied vs. rental, loan vs. grant, 
etc.). Once a project scope is approved by the City Council, JCHTF 
would administer the program until the funds are exhausted. If 
funding is still available after the initial project, the scope and 
applicant pool could be expanded, or the City could reallocate the 
funds to another eligible project.  

Workforce Housing 
Program 

$100,000 

The State of Iowa offers a workforce housing tax credit program 
that requires City participation of $1,000/unit. Earmarking funds in 
anticipation that developers would apply for and receive state 
approval will encourage construction of workforce housing in North 
Liberty. Substantial job growth is projected for North Liberty over 
the next few years and many of those employees will need housing 
in North Liberty.  

Social Service Support $300,000 

There are many local and highly efficient social service agencies 
providing services to area residents. Financial assistance to one or 
more of these agencies will help expand and/or fill gaps in service 
areas. For example, the North Liberty Community Food Pantry is 
finalizing a strategic plan that calls for more work to be done in other 
areas such as availability of toiletries, educational opportunities and 
mental health (see attached memo from Mayor Donahue). ARPA 
funding, coupled with the use of free office space at the newly 
renovated Ranshaw House, will have a significant impact on social 
service offerings in North Liberty. 

Water & Sewer Projects $1,500,000 

If the City Council has interest in using a portion of the ARPA funds 
to offset project costs within the enterprise funds, as part of the 
FY23 budget preparation, staff will evaluate which potential projects 
would have the most significant impact on user rates over the next 
couple of years. The idea behind this approach is to supplement 
user fees with ARPA money to minimize potential rate increases 
within the utility funds. 



Stormwater GIS Program $200,000 

The City has completed GIS mapping of water and wastewater 
infrastructure and the result is very impressive. This tool will allow 
public works staff to quickly and accurately locate utilities from any 
web-based device, store and access detailed information and 
specifications for all utilities in one central location, implement real 
time map updates and much more. The remaining piece of this 
project, which is the most expensive piece because there are so 
many data points, is mapping the stormwater infrastructure.  Once 
the existing infrastructure is mapped, staff can collect new data 
points as projects are constructed, resulting in real time updates to 
the maps.  

Centennial Park Splash 
Pad 

$456,110 

The ARP Act includes language and a formula that allows cities to 
capture revenue lost during the pandemic. Using this formula, staff 
has calculated a revenue loss of over $600k. These dollars have 
minimal restrictions compared to the remaining ARPA funds. One 
idea is to invest in a project that has a long-term benefit for 
residents. The future splash pad (and accompanying 
amphitheater/shelter) will offer free community entertainment for 
many years in North Liberty.  

TOTAL $2,906,110  
 

In summary, the ideas and dollar amounts listed above are meant to spur discussion and 
generate thoughts as to how the City Council would like to spend ARPA funds. The City 
can begin spending this money immediately and has until December 2026 to exhaust all 
$2.9 million. The intent of Tuesday’s conversation is not necessarily to allocate all of the 
funds; rather to take another step forward in identifying programs and projects. 

 



 

 

To North Liberty Mayor & Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date August 16, 2021 
Re American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds 

On July 26, 2021, the City received confirmation from the state that the initial paperwork 
necessary to receive ARPA funds had been approved and funding in the amount of 
$2,906,110.44 has been allocated for North Liberty. The funds will be dispersed in two 
installments, with the first half expected within 30 days of July 26, 2021 and the second 
half to be released approximately 12 months following the first payment.  
 
In May, the US Treasury Department released Interim Final Rules, which provides local 
governments guidance as to how the ARPA money can be spent. This document is over 
150 pages; however, the Treasury also released several helpful reference documents 
including an Interim Final Rules Facts Sheet, a Quick Reference Sheet on COVID-19 
Relief Funds and an FAQ document, all of which are linked in this memo and can be found 
at the Iowa League of Cities ARPA Resource Page.  
 
The Treasury summarizes that local governments can use ARPA funds for projects and 
programs that fall within the following categories: 
 

1. Support public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, 
medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, and certain public health and safety 
staff; 

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health 
emergency, including economic harm to workers, households, small businesses, 
impacted industries, and the public sector; 

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government 
services to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the 
pandemic; 

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to 
those who have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their 
service in critical infrastructure sectors; and, 

5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary 
investments to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater 
and stormwater infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet. 
 

The various resource documents noted above offer more specific details as to how 
funding can or should be used within these categories. Regardless of how the money is 
spent, it will all be subject to reporting requirements developed by the federal 
government. Moreover, it should be assumed that if money is spent outside the rules of 
this program, it will be required to be repaid. 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/FRF-Interim-Final-Rule.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRP-Fact-Sheet-FINAL1-508A.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRP-Quick-Reference-Guide-FINAL-508a.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRP-Quick-Reference-Guide-FINAL-508a.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRPFAQ.pdf
https://www.iowaleague.org/Pages/American-Rescue-Plan-Resources-.aspx


Below are examples within each category of how North Liberty could spend the ARPA 
money. This is not an exhaustive list; rather ideas to start the discussion. Once staff has a 
better understanding of how the City Council would like to see this funding allocated, 
further refined ideas can be considered. 
 

1. Support public health expenditures 
This category allows for various types of public health expenditures, most of 
which are handled by other agencies. There could be some applicable expenses 
such as improvements to facilities to meet pandemic operational needs, hosting 
additional vaccination clinics and/or campaigns, and necessary PPE purchases.   

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency 
There are various options within this category, including direct assistance 
programs to workers, families, small business and other business sectors hit 
especially hard during the pandemic (i.e. tourism). The City could create and 
administer its own program to offer direct financial assistance or partner with 
another organization. Given that a new program administration process would 
require more staff capacity than currently available, if the Council wishes to 
consider a direct assistance program, staff recommends collaborating with 
another jurisdiction or organization.  

3. Replace lost public sector revenue 
The Interim Final Rules provide a formula for local governments to determine lost 
revenue. Accordingly, North Liberty can recoup $666,693 from the City’s ARPA 
allocation to be placed in the general fund. From there, the City Council would 
have a great deal of autonomy to allocate funding to a project or program. 

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers 
This provision allows for premium or hazard pay to be awarded to essential 
workers, either directly or through grants to employers, with a focus on low wage 
earners. Employment sectors identified in the rules include healthcare, grocery 
and food service, education, public safety, childcare, sanitation, transit and more.    

5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure 
There are various on-going or future infrastructure projects that would qualify for 
this piece of the program. Those include: 
 

Ranshaw Way, Phase 5 Storm Water Improvements $1,244,049  
Dubuque Street, Phase 1 Storm Water Improvements $450,195  
Civic Campus Storm Water Improvements  $500,000 
Storm Water GIS Implementation    $190,000 
Water/Wastewater/Storm Water Storage Shop  $3,000,000 
TOTAL       $5,384,244 

  
In terms of broadband, the program focuses on areas lacking a wire connection 
that delivers minimum speeds of 25 Mbps download and 3 Mbps upload. Both 



South Slope and Mediacom offer this service.  The program does allow for direct 
assistance to households to cover the monthly subscription costs.  

 
In the FAQ resource, issued on July 19, 2021, the Treasury clarifies that the City has until 
December 2024 to allocate the entirety of the $2.9 million and until December of 2026 
to spend the money. It appears that the intent of this rule is to allow local governments an 
opportunity to thoughtfully consider and/or design a project/program. In other words, no 
decisions need to be made immediately. The City Council can take its time in deciding 
how to allocate this funding. 
 
As the City Council deliberates best uses for these funds, I would encourage you to think 
about the following: 

- should the funds be aimed at one or two larger programs or projects or for a wide 
range of more modest proposals? 

- should the funds be used for projects already considered or new, not yet 
identified projects? 

 
And finally, the County has established an ARPA Team that is seeking public input 
through in person and virtual sessions as well as surveys. As the data is compiled, it might 
be a good resource to evaluate as decisions are contemplated. 
 
The first Council discussion on this topic is slated for Tuesday, August 24. If you need 
further information or clarification or have questions prior to the meeting, please do not 
hesitate to contact me.  



North Liberty Pantry Interview 

With Kaila Rome 

August 30, 2021 

An interview was held with the above named to understand the needs of the 
organization.   

Key Points: 

1) The key item for the pantry is space.  They believe there is a need for an 
additional 2500 Sq. ft.  Reasons are the pantry cannot add additional help 
for the program.  Areas are limited as to food storage with which nearly 
500,000 pounds are distributed per year. Staff have no privacy areas in 
which to talk with patrons who request such. Now they need to talk in an 
open waiting room. 

2) Covid has forced to serve minimal persons at one time in the facility. The 
number is 2 until 1 in/one out.  Any other persons must wait outside or in 
their vehicles until their turn comes up. 

3) Rent/utility assistance.  In light of these needs, the local churches can help 
some. The bigger issue is persons must go to Iowa City for information, 
making applications, submitting necessary proof of need. Proof includes 
prior or current pay stubs, other financial help they are getting such as 
Social Security, SSI.   The pantry is willing to provide help in these areas to 
cut down on the number of trips which may be needed if provided the 
capabilities. 

4) Families are cutting their food budget to pay for outside needs.  Pantry staff 
are endeavoring to teach clients to bulk up on foods, etc., in order available 
at the pantry to have a better buffer to better address outside costs. 

5) Food has been available on a no-cost basis at this from HACAP and other 
agencies.  How long this will last is uncertain. If start losing this, an 
additional $1000 per week would have to be paid out of the pantry’s 
budget. 

6) SNAP Benefits. The benefits have increased in terms of additional money 
being added to SNAP cards. This is only temporary and may be taken away 
in September or soon thereafter. The added benefits has helped persons in 
need to provide a bridge for family costs. 



Page 2 – NL Pantry Interview 

7) Toiletries are in high demand. These include personal hygiene products, 
diapers especially. A limit on diapers must be invoked from time to time 
because of limited supply.  When the pantry tries to buy diapers, there are 
no allowances made by local vendors for decreased pricing. Everyone pays 
market price. 
 

8) Internet affordability. The reasons for non-use include price for the service, 
available computers. The library has picked some of the slack.  Need is 
increasing because persons must complete job applications, applications 
for various services and school work. 
 

9) Gas vouchers. There is call upon the pantry to provide some funding for 
gasoline vouchers.  These could be limited to one voucher per month for 
$10-15 controlled/monitored by the pantry. 
 

10)  
Work attire program.  Persons who have obtained a job which calls for a 
specific type of uniform and work shoes would be helpful.  Persons do not 
have the money to buy such right away and be employment ready. 

      11) 

The pantry would like to start or restart a community meal to be held one 
time per month or quarter. Apparently Coralville has done this and 
averages about 500 persons. The meal is open to all. 

These notes are for your use in deliberating future fund requests. 



 

FY 2022 Budget 
Amendment 



REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Total Budget
as Certified

or Last Amended
Current

Amendment
Total Budget After

Current Amendment

Taxes Levied on Property 1 11,648,341 0 11,648,341
Less: Uncollected Delinquent Taxes - Levy Year 2 0 0 0
Net Current Property Tax 3 11,648,341 0 11,648,341
Delinquent Property Tax Revenue 4 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 5 4,898,098 0 4,898,098
Other City Taxes 6 437,752 0 437,752
Licenses & Permits 7 656,950 0 656,950
Use of Money & Property 8 110,000 0 110,000
Intergovernmental 9 2,907,948 0 2,907,948
Charges for Service 10 12,553,000 0 12,553,000
Special Assessments 11 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 12 57,500 0 57,500
Other Financing Sources 13 4,337,000 0 4,337,000
Transfers In 14 13,709,957 1,062 13,711,019
Total Revenues & Other Sources 15 51,316,546 1,062 51,317,608
EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES
Public Safety 16 4,881,081 652,087 5,533,168
Public Works 17 3,533,460 124,700 3,658,160
Health and Social Services 18 135,000 125,000 260,000
Culture and Recreation 19 5,376,841 1,209,480 6,586,321
Community and Economic Development 20 2,265,214 131,034 2,396,248
General Government 21 2,270,684 256,832 2,527,516
Debt Service 22 6,103,969 0 6,103,969
Capital Projects 23 4,752,000 8,066,000 12,818,000
Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 29,318,249 10,565,133 39,883,382
Business Type/Enterprise 25 7,794,555 2,430,784 10,225,339
Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 37,112,804 12,995,917 50,108,721
Tranfers Out 27 13,709,957 1,062 13,711,019
Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 50,822,761 12,996,979 63,819,740
Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 493,785 -12,995,917 -12,502,132

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2021 30 12,383,378 5,543,370 17,926,748
Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2022 31 12,877,163 -7,452,547 5,424,616
Explanation of Changes: Available cash based on actual audit number. Insurance premium increase. Fuel cost increases.  Electricity and natural gas
increases. Projects that carried over from previous fiscal year.  Derecho and hail damage ongoing repairs.  Expending ARPA funds.  Special election.
Replacement of three police officers.  Changes in employee health care insurance status.  Increased cost of supplies, including sand and salt. NWERP
financial software implementation payments carryover.  Expending donations. Repairing damage that was covered by insurance.  New contracts. Housing
Rehab program.  Additional usage of credit cards. Reimbursed expenses (grants/insurance/donations).    Overtime for part time staff working on holidays.
Ranshaw House utilities.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - AMENDMENT OF CURRENT BUDGET
City of NORTH LIBERTY

Fiscal Year July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022
The City of NORTH LIBERTY will conduct a public hearing for the purpose of amending the current budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022

Meeting Date/Time: 5/24/2022 06:00 PM Contact: Tracey Mulcahey Phone: (319) 626-5700
Meeting Location: 1 Quail Creek Circle
There will be no increase in taxes. Any residents or taxpayers will be heard for or against the proposed amendment at the time and place specified above. A
detailed statement of: additional receipts, cash balances on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, and proposed disbursements, both past and
anticipated, will be available at the hearing.

05/10/2022 02:44 PM Page 1 of 1

1
1

1

1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

9



Summary of Comments on PublicHearingNotice (3).pdf
Page: 1

Number: 1 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:08:01 PM 
Park equipment overage

Number: 2 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/20/2022 8:29:51 AM 
Replacement of police officers, part time intern, HVAC contract, increased fuel costs, increased gas and electricity costs, increased insurance costs, 
parts increase.  Additional spending authority in wages due to reimbursed overtime. Changes in staffing at Fire Dept. Worker's comp increase, 
Hail/derecho repairs.  Higher credit card fees than anticipated. 

Number: 3 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:19:47 PM 
Salt and sand cost increase.  Insurance increase.  Fuel increase.  Electricity and gas utility increase.  Striping carryover costs from previous FY. 
Insurance covered expenses. 

Number: 4 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:20:07 PM 
ARPA expenditures 

Number: 5 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:22:14 PM 
Community Center Roof Project (insurance).  Pool heater project.  Grant/donation reimbursed expenses.  Increased insurance costs.  Hail/derecho 
repairs.  Increased costs of utilities. Increased cost of insurance.  PT staff holiday pay.  Refund costs. Increased cost of supplies. 

Number: 6 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:23:44 PM 
Increased insurance costs. Increased engineering fees for subdivisions, site plans and other planning developments. Increased cost to MPOJC with 
new census number. 

Number: 7 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:25:02 PM 
Carryover unbudgeted cost of NWERP implementation. Special election. Increased insurance costs. Ranshaw House utilities.  Additional credit card 
fees. Cleaning services. 

Number: 8 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:28:42 PM 
Projects overlapping fiscal year or not budgeted.  Includes new City Hall, streets projects, and parks projects. ARPA spending authority. 

Number: 9 Author: tmulcahey Subject: Sticky Note Date: 5/10/2022 3:29:05 PM 
Insurance costs, utility costs, projects that overlapped fiscal years. Flood at WPCP plant. 



North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-44 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2022-44 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CURRENT BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of North Liberty in Johnson County met on May 24, 2022 at 

the place and hour set in the notice, a copy of which accompanies this certificate and is certified 
as to publication;  

  
WHEREAS, upon taking up the proposed amendment, it was considered and taxpayers 

were heard for and against the amendment;  
 
WHEREAS, The Council after hearing all taxpayers wishing to be heard and considering 

the statements made by them gave final consideration to the proposed amendment to the 
budget and modifications proposed at the hearing, if any. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby authorize the 

amendment to the budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of May, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Liberty Villas Rezoning 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-10 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2022-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA TO THOSE SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR 
THE RS-6 SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND RM-12 
PAD MULTI-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2013) is 
hereby amended by amending the zoning for 25.64 acres, more or less, of property located on the 
east side of North Dubuque Street approximately 185’ south of Scales Bend Road.  The property 
is more particularly described as follows:  
 

A. C-2-A Highway Commercial District and I-1 Light Industrial District to RS-6 Single-
Unit Residence District on property more particular described as follows: part of 
Auditor’s Parcel No. 2017‐092 and part of Auditor’s Parcel No. 2016‐089, in the city of 
North Liberty, county of Johnson, State of Iowa, more particularly described as 
follows: Commencing at the Northeast Quarter Corner of Section 12, Township 80 
North, Range 7 West of the 5th Principal Meridian; Thence South 89° 59' 38" East 
along the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 12, Township 80 North, 
Range 7 West, a distance of 30.00 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing 
South 89° 59' 38" East along said North line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, a 
distance of 1161.49 feet; Thence South 30° 53' 18" West, a distance of 205.36 feet to a 
point on a 150.00 feet radius curve, concave Southwesterly; Thence 161.00 feet 
Southeasterly along said curve, with a central angle of 61° 29' 45" and a 153.38 feet 
chord that bears South 28° 21' 50" East; Thence South 02° 23' 03 West, a distance of 
335.28 feet to a point on a 150.00 feet radius curve, concave Westerly; Thence 38.96 
feet Southerly along said curve, with a central angle of 14° 52' 46" and a 38.85 feet 
chord that bears South 09° 49' 26" West; Thence South 87° 56' 26" East, a distance 
of 50.69 feet; Thence South 01° 39' 16" West, a distance of 242.40 feet to the 
Northeast corner of Lot 1 in Squash Bend First Addition; Thence North 89° 27' 41" 
West, a distance of 230.48 feet to the Northeast corner of said Lot 1; Thence South 
47° 03' 02” West, a distance of 177.63 feet; Thence North 42° 48' 32” West, a distance 
of 650.00 feet; Thence South 47° 03' 02” West, a distance of 155.00 to a point on the 
Northeasterly right‐of‐way line of North Dubuque Street; Thence North 42° 48' 32” 
West along said Northeasterly right‐of‐way line, a distance of 6.47 feet; Thence North 
12° 58' 53” West along said Northeasterly right‐of‐way line, a distance of 24.44 feet to 
a point on a 204.00 feet radius curve, concave Southwesterly; Thence 199.11 feet 
Northwesterly along said curve, with a central angle of 55° 55' 20" and a 191.31 feet 
chord that bears North 38° 30' 55" West; Thence North 49° 58' 29” West, a distance 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-10 
Page 2 

 

of 57.50 feet to a point on the East right‐of‐way line of Highway No. 965; Thence 
North 09° 38' 15” West along the East right‐of‐way line of said Highway No. 965, a 
distance of 134.38 feet; Thence North 90° 00' 00” West along said East right‐of‐way 
line, a distance of 15.66 feet; Thence North 12° 31' 44” West along said East right‐of‐
way line, a distance of 101.40 feet; Thence North 00° 47' 24” West along said East 
right‐of‐way line, a distance of 229.66 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said property 
contains 19.729 acres, more or less. 

B. I-1 Light Industrial District to RM-12 PAD Multi-Unit Residence District Planned Area 
Development on property more particularly described as follows: Part of Auditor’s 
Parcel No. 2017‐092, in the City of North Liberty, County Of Johnson, State of Iowa, 
more particularly described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of said 
Auditor’s Parcel No. 2017‐092 in the City of North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa; 
Thence South 02° 04' 03" West along the east line of said Auditor’s Parcel No. 2017‐
092, a distance of 692.86 feet to the Southeast corner of said Auditor’s Parcel No. 
2017‐092; Thence North 87° 56' 26” West along the South line of said Auditor’s Parcel 
No. 2017‐092, a distance of 222.28 feet to a point on a 150.00 feet radius curve, 
concave Westerly; Thence 38.96 feet Northerly along said curve, with a central angle 
of 14° 52' 46" and a 38.85 feet chord that bears North 09° 49' 26" East; Thence North 
02° 23' 03 East, a distance of 335.28 feet to a point on a 150.00 feet radius curve, 
concave Southwesterly; Thence 161.00 feet Northwesterly along said curve, with a 
central angle of 61° 29' 45" and a 153.38 feet chord that bears North 28° 21' 50" West; 
Thence North 30° 53' 18” East, a distance of 205.36 feet to the North line of said 
Auditor’s Parcel No. 2017‐092; Thence South 89° 59' 13” East along said Auditor’s 
Parcel No. 2017‐092, a distance of 194.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said 
property contains 3.598 acres, more or less. 

AND 
Part of Auditor’s Parcel No. 2017‐092, in the City of North Liberty, County of Johnson, 

State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at the Westerly 
corner of Lot 1 in Squash Bend First Addition in the City of North Liberty, Johnson 
County, Iowa, said point being on the Northeasterly right‐of‐way line of North 
Dubuque Street; Thence North 42° 48' 32” West along said right‐of‐way line, a 
distance of 650.00 feet; Thence North 47° 03' 02” East, a distance of 155.00 feet; 
Thence South 42° 48' 32” East, a distance of 650.00 feet; Thence South 47° 03' 02” 
West, a distance of 155.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said property contains 2.313 
acres, more or less. 

 
SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  At April 5, 2022 meeting the Planning Commission 
accepted the listed finding, the proposed zonings would achieve consistency with Section 
165.09 of the Zoning Ordinance if the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map is amended 
to residential and forwards the request for a zoning map amendment to the City Council 
with a recommendation for approval with no conditions.  
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-10 
Page 3 

 

SECTION 3.  ZONING MAP.  It is hereby authorized and directed that the Zoning Map of the City 
of North Liberty, Iowa, be changed to conform to this amendment upon final passage, approval 
and publication of this ordinance as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 4.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 5.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on April 26, 2022. 
Second reading on May 10, 2022. 
Third and final reading on ___________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-10 
Page 4 

 

I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-10 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
_____, 2022.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 





 

 

 



P-Zoning RS-6

U
N

IT A
U

N
IT B

U
N

IT C

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

U
N

IT A
U

N
IT B

U
N

IT C

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

U
N

IT A
U

N
IT B

U
N

IT C

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

UNIT A

UNIT B

UNIT C

GARAGE

GARAGE

GARAGE









31'60' 31'60'

Ø71'




























30'

25'



 

























































































 




















































































































































30'

25'

60'

31'

25'

60'

60'

31'

60'

31' 84.5'

125'

60'

31'

304.8'

125' 60' 125'
125'

60' 125'

60'

30' 30'

31'

25' 25'

25'

25'

125'

60'

70'

70.1'

60'

31'

70'

620'

70'

125'

70'

60'

31'

60'

60'

31'

60'

31'

N
02

° 2
3'

 0
3"

E
33

5.
28

70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70' 70'
125'

75' 75'
177.2'

70'

70'

70'

76.5'

76.5'

76.5'

76.5'

76'

70'

70'

70'

70'

70'

77.9' 76'

70'

70'

76'

70'

87'

70'

70'

70'

70'

87'
























































































































































































194'

390.9'

151'

151'

UNIT 
A

UNIT B

UNIT C

GARAGE

GARAGE

GARAGE

UNIT A

UNIT B

UNIT C

GARAGE

GARAGE

GARAGE

UNIT A

UNIT B

UNIT C

GARAGE

GARAGE

GARAGE

170.3'

220'

169.8'

REVISIONS:
DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

      
      
      
      

Total Lots: 68
Single Family Lots: 61

3-Plex Lots: 7 (21 Units)

RS-6 Bulk Regulations
Front Yard Depth - 25 Feet

Each Side Yard Width - 8 Feet
Rear Yard Depth - 30 Feet

APPROXIMATE SITE LOCATION

3/16/2022DATE:

CHECKED BY
CHECKED BY:

DRAWING LOCATION
DRAWING LOCATION

DRAWN BY:
DRAWN BY

DEVELOPERPROJECT CONCEPT PLAN

DUBUQUE STREET
LIBERTY VILLAS C1

SHEET NO.

DEVELOPER NAME

DEVELOPER ADDRESS 02
DEVELOPER ADDRESS 01

800/292-8989
BEFORE YOU DIG

Call 2 Working Days

IOWA
ONE CALL

CONCEPT PLAN

TO THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IA

LIBERTY VILLAS

NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

RM-12 RESIDENTIAL MULTI-FAMILY

RS-6 RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY

Lot Width - 70 Feet Min.
Minimum Lot Area 7,000 Sq. Ft. (0.16 Ac)







For Project: N Dubuque St Project

Project Notes:

Location/Name: Outgoing

Report Generated: 2/28/2022 11:39

Speed Intervals 1 MPH

Time Intervals Instant

Traffic Report From 2/16/2022 10:00:00 through 2/28/2022 12:59:59

85th Percentile Speed 40 MPH

85th Percentile Vehicles 12176

Max Speed 74 MPH on 2/26/2022 13:54:46

Total Vehicles 14325

AADT: 1181

Volumes -

weekly counts
Time 5 Day 7 Day

Average Daily 1223 1108

AM Peak 08:00 237 177

PM Peak 03:00 107 95

Speed
Speed Limit: 45

85th Percentile Speed: 40

Average Speed: 34.94

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

Count over limit 35 20 51 39 55 33 43

% over limit 1.8 1.7 2.2 1.5 1.9 2.0 2.6

Avg Speeder 48.6 48.6 48.1 48.6 48.3 49.8 48.3

Class Counts
Number %

VEH_SM 59 0.4

VEH_MED 13872 96.8

VEH_LG 394 2.8

[VEH_SM=motorcycle, VEH_MED = sedan, VEH_LG = truck]



Outgoing Weekly Counts

N Dubuque St Project from Wed-Feb-16-2022-10-00-AM to Mon-Feb-28-2022-12-59-PM

2/14/2022 to 2/20/2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Week Weekend Week Day 85%

Hour 2/14/2022 2/15/2022 2/16/2022 2/17/2022 2/18/2022 2/19/2022 2/20/2022 Day Avg Avg Avg Speed

0 - 1 * * * 5 12 16 16 8.5 16 33.65

1 - 2 * * * 1 6 8 6 3.5 7 28

2 - 3 * * * 3 1 1 2 2 1.5 36.5

3 - 4 * * * 3 4 5 2 3.5 3.5 36

4 - 5 * * * 4 2 2 3 3 2.5 37

5 - 6 * * * 6 6 4 0 6 2 36

6 - 7 * * * 24 25 8 9 24.5 8.5 38.3

7 - 8 * * * 99 102 26 14 100.5 20 38.35

8 - 9 * * * 242 246 20 28 244 24 37.3

9 - 10 * * * 135 107 38 42 121 40 41.1

10 - 11 * * 9 62 53 48 43 41.33 45.5 42.83

11 - 12 * * 63 60 59 38 67 60.67 52.5 38.27

12 - 13 * * 51 46 64 46 51 53.67 48.5 38.07

13 - 14 * * 66 50 71 54 64 62.33 59 40.97

14 - 15 * * 57 90 59 56 66 68.67 61 38.67

15 - 16 * * 92 88 120 63 70 100 66.5 39.5

16 - 17 * * 66 68 102 54 82 78.67 68 39.53

17 - 18 * * 86 136 101 53 65 107.67 59 39.63

18 - 19 * * 109 100 123 70 85 110.67 77.5 39

19 - 20 * * 113 58 71 38 40 80.67 39 39.17

20 - 21 * * 65 45 75 28 29 61.67 28.5 37.5

21 - 22 * * 52 32 37 25 22 40.33 23.5 36

22 - 23 * * 18 14 26 42 19 19.33 30.5 35.67

23 - 24 * * 29 28 20 24 25 25.67 24.5 35.93

Totals 0 0 876 1399 1492 767 850

% of Total 0% 0% 16.27% 25.98% 27.71% 14.25% 15.79%

Page 1

rrusnak
Rectangle



Outgoing Weekly Counts

N Dubuque St Project from Wed-Feb-16-2022-10-00-AM to Mon-Feb-28-2022-12-59-PM

2/21/2022 to 2/27/2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Week Weekend Week Day 85%

Hour 2/21/2022 2/22/2022 2/23/2022 2/24/2022 2/25/2022 2/26/2022 2/27/2022 Day Avg Avg Avg Speed

0 - 1 4 4 5 7 4 14 17 4.8 15.5 33.2

1 - 2 2 4 3 4 3 6 7 3.2 6.5 34.1

2 - 3 0 2 1 1 3 1 1 1.4 1 34

3 - 4 4 5 3 1 4 1 4 3.4 2.5 34.2

4 - 5 3 4 0 2 4 2 2 2.6 2 33.25

5 - 6 6 8 4 10 6 1 3 6.8 2 37.3

6 - 7 27 19 22 27 13 5 5 21.6 5 38.2

7 - 8 90 85 99 100 79 22 11 90.6 16.5 38.26

8 - 9 212 229 269 233 208 40 19 230.2 29.5 36.14

9 - 10 130 118 123 144 129 45 38 128.8 41.5 38.7

10 - 11 77 66 71 68 62 44 51 68.8 47.5 39.08

11 - 12 43 33 46 44 50 43 57 43.2 50 39.18

12 - 13 54 36 65 58 39 69 49 50.4 59 38.36

13 - 14 76 51 59 52 62 62 60 60 61 40.02

14 - 15 60 37 55 94 68 68 60 62.8 64 38.94

15 - 16 117 118 117 84 106 50 72 108.4 61 38.16

16 - 17 70 65 77 57 83 60 83 70.4 71.5 39.26

17 - 18 102 86 85 89 116 73 62 95.6 67.5 37.86

18 - 19 92 86 130 82 121 81 71 102.2 76 38.78

19 - 20 89 51 80 46 60 49 57 65.2 53 37.28

20 - 21 35 30 42 27 54 33 27 37.6 30 37.74

21 - 22 19 14 39 22 19 27 25 22.6 26 35.24

22 - 23 12 19 14 10 21 21 16 15.2 18.5 37.28

23 - 24 28 27 33 26 33 26 30 29.4 28 37.2

Totals 1352 1197 1442 1288 1347 843 827

% of Total 16.3% 14.43% 17.38% 15.53% 16.24% 10.16% 9.97%

Page 2

rrusnak
Rectangle



For Project: N Dubuque St Project

Project Notes:

Location/Name: Incoming

Report Generated: 2/28/2022 11:39

Speed Intervals 1 MPH

Time Intervals Instant

Traffic Report From 2/16/2022 10:00:00 through 2/28/2022 12:59:59

85th Percentile Speed 43 MPH

85th Percentile Vehicles 14634

Max Speed 69 MPH on 2/19/2022 10:08:06

Total Vehicles 17217

AADT: 1419

Volumes -

weekly counts
Time 5 Day 7 Day

Average Daily 1492 1337

AM Peak 08:00 211 156

PM Peak 04:00 205 166

Speed
Speed Limit: 45

85th Percentile Speed: 43

Average Speed: 38.18

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

Count over limit 175 30 201 165 219 185 187

% over limit 8.2 2.0 6.5 5.1 6.3 9.7 9.9

Avg Speeder 48.0 47.1 48.4 48.2 48.2 48.9 48.0

Class Counts
Number %

VEH_SM 310 1.8

VEH_MED 16409 95.3

VEH_LG 498 2.9

[VEH_SM=motorcycle, VEH_MED = sedan, VEH_LG = truck]



Incoming Weekly Counts

N Dubuque St Project from Wed-Feb-16-2022-10-00-AM to Mon-Feb-28-2022-12-59-PM

2/14/2022 to 2/20/2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Week Weekend Week Day 85%

Hour 2/14/2022 2/15/2022 2/16/2022 2/17/2022 2/18/2022 2/19/2022 2/20/2022 Day Avg Avg Avg Speed

0 - 1 * * * 22 26 39 30 24 34.5 38.5

1 - 2 * * * 4 3 20 10 3.5 15 37.5

2 - 3 * * * 6 0 9 9 3 9 33

3 - 4 * * * 0 3 2 1 1.5 1.5 39

4 - 5 * * * 6 5 3 4 5.5 3.5 38

5 - 6 * * * 7 3 3 2 5 2.5 45.25

6 - 7 * * * 8 8 3 6 8 4.5 39.5

7 - 8 * * * 51 40 0 4 45.5 2 41.7

8 - 9 * * * 212 216 22 18 214 20 40.65

9 - 10 * * * 77 80 31 30 78.5 30.5 42.5

10 - 11 * * 7 52 36 56 42 31.67 49 42

11 - 12 * * 46 38 46 43 54 43.33 48.5 42.43

12 - 13 * * 62 53 77 49 71 64 60 44.63

13 - 14 * * 79 61 75 64 87 71.67 75.5 43.93

14 - 15 * * 59 67 69 74 80 65 77 43.4

15 - 16 * * 86 156 105 62 80 115.67 71 43.6

16 - 17 * * 206 181 229 64 82 205.33 73 42.8

17 - 18 * * 217 181 228 75 82 208.67 78.5 42.93

18 - 19 * * 199 187 184 69 78 190 73.5 42.07

19 - 20 * * 130 83 102 67 75 105 71 41.27

20 - 21 * * 76 58 60 52 48 64.67 50 39.93

21 - 22 * * 94 69 71 43 36 78 39.5 39.17

22 - 23 * * 42 36 33 32 23 37 27.5 39.67

23 - 24 * * 21 24 55 26 12 33.33 19 37.6

Totals 0 0 1324 1639 1754 908 964

% of Total 0% 0% 20.09% 24.87% 26.62% 13.78% 14.63%

Page 1

rrusnak
Rectangle



Incoming Weekly Counts

N Dubuque St Project from Wed-Feb-16-2022-10-00-AM to Mon-Feb-28-2022-12-59-PM

2/21/2022 to 2/27/2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Week Weekend Week Day 85%

Hour 2/21/2022 2/22/2022 2/23/2022 2/24/2022 2/25/2022 2/26/2022 2/27/2022 Day Avg Avg Avg Speed

0 - 1 4 24 22 32 29 46 28 22.2 37 37.86

1 - 2 2 4 8 5 3 10 13 4.4 11.5 37.6

2 - 3 1 3 5 1 2 7 7 2.4 7 36.4

3 - 4 0 2 0 5 1 4 4 1.6 4 40

4 - 5 2 6 0 5 12 7 5 5 6 41.75

5 - 6 7 10 7 6 8 4 3 7.6 3.5 41.4

6 - 7 8 11 11 9 11 7 3 10 5 41.08

7 - 8 43 37 42 51 43 11 5 43.2 8 41.56

8 - 9 219 200 213 205 207 20 14 208.8 17 39.94

9 - 10 83 75 84 86 67 43 35 79 39 41.94

10 - 11 48 27 48 47 40 65 40 42 52.5 42.36

11 - 12 58 42 65 31 50 52 63 49.2 57.5 42.48

12 - 13 60 41 70 64 64 50 65 59.8 57.5 43.7

13 - 14 56 68 70 59 74 58 83 65.4 70.5 44.32

14 - 15 60 62 60 60 66 73 67 61.6 70 44

15 - 16 73 76 74 165 92 58 77 96 67.5 43.14

16 - 17 207 199 220 177 232 65 67 207 66 41.86

17 - 18 179 172 231 156 214 86 80 190.4 83 41.68

18 - 19 217 169 189 192 219 94 68 197.2 81 41.74

19 - 20 90 83 120 77 110 72 85 96 78.5 40.56

20 - 21 52 63 69 53 51 52 53 57.6 52.5 39.66

21 - 22 75 84 92 45 40 41 27 67.2 34 39.14

22 - 23 40 33 43 25 51 32 16 38.4 24 39.82

23 - 24 17 14 19 15 52 42 21 23.4 31.5 38.32

Totals 1601 1505 1762 1571 1738 999 929

% of Total 15.84% 14.89% 17.44% 15.55% 17.2% 9.89% 9.19%

Page 2

rrusnak
Rectangle



 

Zoning Map Amendment – 
The Preserve  



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-11 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2022-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA TO THOSE SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR 
THE RS-9 SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2013) is 
hereby amended by amending the zoning for 3.90 acres, more or less, of property located on the 
south side of Denison Avenue approximately 450 feet east of Brook Ridge Avenue.  The property 
is more particularly described as follows:  
 
Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 14, Township 80 North, Range 
7 West, of the Fifth Principal Meridian, North Liberty, Iowa, described as follows: 
Commencing at the Southeast Corner of The Preserve, Part One, to North Liberty, Iowa, in 
accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 63 at Page 170 of the Records of the 
Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence N89°15'31"E, along the North Line of Auditor's Parcel 
2019013, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 63 at Page 61 of the Records 
of the Johnson County Recorder's Office, 103.71 feet; Thence N88°44'24"E, along said North Line, 
207.43 feet; Thence N89°08'16"E, along said North Line, 178.71 feet; Thence N89°08'16"E, along 
said North Line, 161.33 feet; Thence N00°51'44"W, 167.06 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
Thence S89°08'16"W, 31.33 feet; Thence N00°51'44"W, 530.65 feet; Thence N89°08'16"E, 320.00 
feet; Thence S00°51'44"E, 530.65 feet; Thence S89°08'16"W, 288.67 feet, to the point of 
beginning. Said property contains 3.90 Acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions of 
record. 
 
SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  At the May 3, 2022, meeting the Planning Commission 
accepted the listed findings, 1. The zoning map amendment would be consistent with the 
North Liberty Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map; and 2. The RS-9 Single-unit 
Dwelling District zoning would be compatible with the area.  and forwards the request for a 
zoning map amendment to the City Council with a recommendation for approval with no 
conditions.  
 
SECTION 3.  ZONING MAP.  It is hereby authorized and directed that the Zoning Map of the City 
of North Liberty, Iowa, be changed to conform to this amendment upon final passage, approval 
and publication of this ordinance as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 4.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-11 
Page 2 

 

SECTION 5.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on __________. 
Second reading on ______. 
Third and final reading on ___________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-11 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
_____, 2022.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Additional Information   



 

  

 

To North Liberty Mayor and City Council Members 
CC Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
From Brian Platz, Fire Chief 
Date May 19th, 2022 
Re Fire Department Report to Council – May 2022 

By way of a few updates, we progress the notion of incorporating EMS only responders within the department.  

Interviews and background checks are complete and we look forward to an orientation session yet this month.  We 

are moving forward with a total of six responders, one from existing staff and five from outside the department.   

 

I want to thank those who attended our badge pinning ceremony on May 1st.  Your presence demonstrated the 

importance of another fire department milestone.  Family and friends of our newer firefighters took the time to 

comment on the ceremony and how much it meant to them.  Thank you for being there for the department and its 

members. 

 

The eleven probationary members continue to grow and expand their fire service knowledge.  Many of them have 

been cleared to respond to calls and will soon be incorporated into our “on call” system.  Additionally, we are in the 

process of adding one more firefighter into our part time group.  This additional firefighter will assist with covering 

shifts on the weekends.  We continue to monitor the SAFER grant process in anticipation of an award or decline 

notification.  We remain hopeful that our application will be favorably considered and have recently learned that 

the award process could start as early as May 30th.   

 

As many of you are aware, the city suffered a significant fire loss at 460 Kansas Avenue on May 13th. This was a 

sprinklered 12 plex apartment building.  Unfortunately, the origin of the fire was on the third-floor deck and 

migrated into the attic space.  While the interior of the building had a sprinkler system, the deck overhang and the 

attic space did not.  Upon arrival of the fire department, fire involved the exterior of the building, the deck area and 

the attic space.  One resident suffered a minor injury as the result of jumping from the third-floor window prior to 

fire department arrival.  Four dogs were rescued during the incident.  Two firefighters were evaluated and treated 

for heat exhaustion and dehydration.  Unfortunately, the building suffered major structural damage; however, 

much of the contents on the first and second floors were salvageable.   

 

While we do everything in our purview to promote life safety and reduce property loss, there are other tangible, 

operational components that we consider following these types of incidents.  There were a number of items we 

plan to work on as well as many positive takeaways.  One particular takeaway was how various city departments 

and county agencies worked together to tackle the problem.  Initially, NLPD arrived, endeavored to evacuate the 

building and provided a detailed assessment to responding fire units.  Additionally, they secured the scene and 

operated the drone to uncover hot spots as fire crews worked to conduct overhaul operations. The streets 

department was on scene as the first engine arrived and assisted with establishing a supply line and helping with 

exterior hose deployment.  The water department was present to ensure appropriate pressures and volume were 

available.  Following the incident, North Liberty Communications provided guidance by way of a media release.  

Other agencies assisting included the Johnson County Ambulance Service, Johnson County Emergency 

Communications, six other fire departments, Johnson County Emergency Management and the Red Cross.  This was 

a large event that severely taxed the fire departments initial response.  That said, city departments and the county 

emergency services agencies collectively worked together for a common goal.   

 



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

North Liberty 106 112 81 105 404 81.95%
Madison Township 3 2 3 7 15 3.04%
Penn Township 7 8 12 11 38 7.71%

Mutual Aid 8 8 7 13 36 7.30%
Total Responses 124 130 103 136 493

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

100 - Fire 3 6 4 3 16 3.25%
200 - Over Pressure, Overheat 1 1 2 0.41%
300 - EMS 77 77 68 84 306 62.07%
400 - Hazardous Condition 3 2 3 3 11 2.23%
500 - Service Call 10 8 5 7 30 6.09%
600 - Good Intent Call 14 25 15 19 73 14.81%
700 - False Alarm & False Call 15 11 8 19 53 10.75%
800 - Severe Weather
900 - Special Incident Type 1 1 2 0.41%
Total Responses 124 130 103 136 493

North Liberty Fire Department
2022 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Fire District

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Type of Incident

North Liberty
82%

Madison 
Township

3%

Penn Township
8%

Mutual Aid
7%

2022 District Responses YTD
(Rounded Percentage)

North Liberty Madison Township Penn Township Mutual Aid

100 - Fire, 3.25%

200 - Over 
Pressure, 

Overheat, 0.41%

300 - EMS, 
62.07%

400 - Hazardous 
Condition, 2.23%

500 - Service Call, 
6.09%

600 - Good 
Intent Call, …

700 - False Alarm 
& False Call, 

10.75%

800 - Severe 
Weather, 0.00%

900 - Special 
Incident Type, 

0.41%

2022 Type of Incidents YTD 
(Percentage)



Year
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date

Total Responses for Month 124 130 103 136 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 493

Average Responders per Incident (Including Members at Station) 4.6 5.9 5.5 4.9 5.2
# Incidents with 2 or less Responders 25 14 11 14 64
% Incidents with 2 or less Responders 20.2% 10.8% 10.7% 10.3% 13.0%
# Incidents with No NLFD Response 0 0 0 0 Year Percent

To Date To Date
# Incidents Cancelled Enroute or Prior to Arrival 12 15 9 16 52 10.55%

# Incidents Cancelled by JCAS 1 5 2 2 10 19.23%
# Incidents Cancelled by JECC 5 2 3 5 15 28.85%
# Incidents Cancelled by Law Enforcement 2 4 3 2 11 21.15%
# Incidents Cancelled by Fire Department 4 4 1 7 16 30.77%

January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total Emergent (Lights & Sirens) Responses for Month 82 71 70 77

# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - PPC/Admin 20 10 19 24
# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - PT 7 18 11 15

# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - Total 27 28 30 39 Year
% Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less 32.9% 39.4% 42.9% 50.6% To Date

90th Percentile Turnout Time - (Minutes) Part-Time 2:49 2:50 3:08 2:21 2:50
90th Percentile Turnout Time - (Minutes) Paid Per Call 7:18 6:34 4:45 5:17 5:59

**(Turnout Time is defined as Dispatch Time to Unit Enroute Time)(PPC-Paid Per Call)(PT-Part Time)

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Auto Aid - Coralville (52001) 3 4 1 3 11 2.23%
Auto Aid - Iowa City (52003) 1 1 2 0.41%
Auto Aid - Solon (52008) 2 2 1 3 8 1.62%
Auto Aid - Swisher (52009) 3 1 4 5 13 2.64%
Auto Aid - Tiffin (52010) 1 1 0.20%
Mutual Aid - Other Fire Departments 1 1 0.20%

Total Responses 8 8 7 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 7.30%

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Auto Aid - Coralville (52001) 2 2 4 3 11 2.23%
Auto Aid - Iowa City (52003) 2 2 0.41%
Auto Aid - Solon (52008) 2 1 3 2 8 1.62%
Auto Aid - Swisher (52009) 2 1 3 0.61%
Auto Aid - Tiffin (52010) 1 1 4 6 1.22%
Mutual Aid - Other Fire Departments 1 1 0.20%

Total Responses 7 5 7 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31 6.29%

North Liberty Fire Department Auto Aid & Mutual Aid Given

North Liberty Fire Department Auto Aid & Mutual Aid Received

North Liberty Fire Department
2022 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Response Statistics (All Incidents)

North Liberty Fire Department Emergent Response Turnout Statistics  (Lights & Sirens)




